
London Borough of Hammersmith & Fulham 
 

 

Climate Change and Ecology 
Policy and Accountability 

Committee 
 

Agenda 
 

Wednesday 14 September 2022 at 7.00 pm 
 

Meeting Room 1 (2nd Floor), 3 Shortlands, Hammersmith, W6 8DA 
 

Watch the meeting live: youtube.com/hammersmithandfulham 
 
 

MEMBERSHIP 
 

Administration Opposition 

Councillor Nicole Trehy (Chair) 
Councillor Ross Melton 
Councillor Laura Janes 
Councillor Stala Antoniades 
 

Councillor Jose Afonso  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: David Abbott 

Governance and Scrutiny 
 Tel 07776 672877 
 E-mail: David.Abbott@lbhf.gov.uk 

 
 
Note: This meeting is open to members of the public but seating is limited so please 
contact David.Abbott@lbhf.gov.uk if you’d like to attend. The building has disabled 
access. 
 

Date Issued: 06 September 2022 
 

https://www.youtube.com/hammersmithandfulham
mailto:David.Abbott@lbhf.gov.uk
mailto:David.Abbott@lbhf.gov.uk


 Climate Change and Ecology PAC Agenda 
14 September 2022 

 
Item  Pages 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 If a Councillor has a disclosable pecuniary interest in a particular item, 
whether or not it is entered in the Authority’s register of interests, or any 
other significant interest which they consider should be declared in the 
public interest, they should declare the existence and, unless it is a 
sensitive interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct, the nature 
of the interest at the commencement of the consideration of that item or 
as soon as it becomes apparent. 
 
Where Members of the public are not allowed to be in attendance and 
speak, then the Councillor with a disclosable pecuniary interest should 
withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter is under consideration. 
Councillors who have declared other significant interests should also 
withdraw from the meeting if they consider their continued participation 
in the matter would not be reasonable in the circumstances and may 
give rise to a perception of a conflict of interest. 
 
Councillors are not obliged to withdraw from the meeting where a 
dispensation to that effect has been obtained from the Standards 
Committee. 
 

 

3.   COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE (TO NOTE)  3 

 To note the terms of reference of the Climate Change and Ecology 
Policy and Accountability Committee. 
 

 

4.   H&F 2030: CLIMATE AND ECOLOGY STRATEGY AND 2022-23 
PRIORITIES  

4 - 37 

 This item gives a comprehensive overview of the council’s Climate and 
Ecology Strategy, progress across the main themes, and priorities for 
2022-23. The strategy sets out the council’s approach to delivering its 
target of net zero greenhouse gas emissions in the borough by 2030. 
 

 

5.   DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS   

 To note the scheduled dates of future meetings: 
 29 November 2022 

 31 January 2023 

 28 March 2023 
 

 

 

 



Climate Change and Ecology 
Policy & Accountability Committee 

Terms of Reference 
 
Members: 
5 voting Councillors 

Quorum: 
3 Members of the Committee 
 

Political proportionality: 
4 Administration Members 
1 Opposition Member 

Co-opted Members: 
Up to 5 non-voting members 

 
Principal Functions 
 
All the powers of an Overview and Scrutiny Committee as set out in section 21 of the 
Local Government Act 2000 and Local Government and Public Involvement in 
Health Act 2007 and Sustainable Communities Act 2007, which provides the 
principal statutory powers by means of which local authorities are currently engaged 
directly in helping to tackle climate change. 

 To discharge of functions contained in s.9FH of Schedule 2 to the Localism 
Act 2011 to review and scrutinise the exercise by flood risk management 
authorities of flood risk management functions which may affect the local 
authority’s area 

 To develop policy within the scope of the Committee and make 
recommendations to the Cabinet 

 Monitor the administration and spending in services within its scope 

 To review the impact of decisions and policies implemented by the Council  

 Lead responsibility for scrutinising the relevant Cabinet Member(s) 
 
Scope: 

 Climate Change and the response to the Climate Emergency 

 Transport, including roads maintenance, other transport infrastructure 

 Parking policy, traffic management and the relationship with TfL 

 Planning policy and performance and the impact of developments on transport 
infrastructure and the environment 

 Recycling and environmental sustainability 

 Waste-disposal, refuse collection, and street cleansing 

 Ecology and Biodiversity 

 Any other matter allocated by the Policy and Oversight Board. 
 
Note: Planning decisions cannot be scrutinised 
 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



LONDON BOROUGH OF HAMMERSMITH & FULHAM 

Report to: Climate Change and Ecology Policy and Accountability   
  Committee 

 

Date:  14/09/2022 

 

Subject: H&F 2030: Climate and Ecology Strategy and 2022-23 Priorities 

 

Report of: Councillor Wesley Harcourt, Cabinet Member for the Environment 

 

Report author: Hinesh Mehta, Head of Climate and Ecology 

 

Responsible Director: Bram Kainth, Strategic Director of Environment 

  

 

SUMMARY 

The attached slide deck gives a comprehensive overview of the council’s Climate 

and Ecology Strategy, progress across the main themes, and priorities for 2022-23.  

The strategy sets out the council’s approach to delivering its target of net zero 
greenhouse gas emissions in the borough by 2030. It was shaped by the work of the 
resident-led Climate and Ecological Emergency Commission, who worked closely 
with the council’s Climate Unit throughout 2020, and was devised by ten cross-
departmental officer working groups, led by the Climate Unit.   
  
As well as responding to a global crisis, tackling the climate emergency in H&F will 
bring benefits for residents and the borough that deliver on the council’s other values 
and objectives. These include a thriving green economy, with skills and jobs for the 
future; a clean public realm bringing improved health and wellbeing; a revival of 
biodiversity; and a locus for shared community involvement. 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the Climate and Ecological Emergency Policy and Accountability Committee: 

1. Note and comment on progress towards net zero. 

2. Note and comment on the strategic priorities set out for 2022-23. 

3. Give feedback on the strategy, progress, and priorities. 

 

 

Wards Affected: All 
 

 
  

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



Our Values Summary of how this report aligns to 
the H&F Values 

Building shared prosperity The council is supporting low carbon 
businesses to grow and move into the 
borough, and is targeting growth in 
green jobs through skills programmes 
and partnerships.  

Creating a compassionate council 
 

The impacts of the climate emergency 
fall unequally on different groups. 
Actions to mitigate and adapt to climate 
change aim to reduce this inequality and 
help residents manage the cost of living 
crisis, including initiatives to tackle fuel 
poverty.   

Doing things with local residents, not to 
them 
 

A continuous programme of events and 
engagement is underway with groups 
and locations around the borough, and 
a community climate champions 
programme aims to put localised climate 
action under the direction of local 
neighbourhoods.  

Being ruthlessly financially efficient 
 

H&F has won various external grants, 
including for housing retrofit, corporate 
building retrofit, and local energy 
planning. Capital planning for carbon 
reduction is maximising opportunities for 
energy efficiency and maintenance cost 
savings. Actions also aim to bring co-
benefits for system-wide cost savings, 
including in waste prevention, 
preventative health, and fuel poverty. 

Taking pride in H&F 
 

A broad range of public realm 
improvements is underway that support 
biodiversity and carbon reduction, while 
providing a beautiful and safe public 
realm for residents. These include 
greening and cleaner air schemes in 
neighbourhoods, parks, and highways. 

Rising to the challenge of the climate 
and ecological emergency 
 

This report updates on progress 
towards the council’s climate and 
ecological emergency ambitions. 

 

 

Background Papers Used in Preparing This Report 
None. 
 

  

Page 5



DETAILED ANALYSIS 
 

1. The slide deck presents an overview of the H&F 2030: Climate and Ecology 

Strategy and Action Plan progress towards net zero to date.  

 

2. The council is working hard to decarbonise its own estate by 2030, and to use 

its local powers and influence to support the borough to achieve the same. 

 

3. The council’s core organisational carbon footprint reduced by 21% from 

2019/20 to 2020/21.1 The council has made important first steps towards 

decarbonising its operations. Most significantly this includes the retrofit of the 

civic campus, initiating the development of retrofit strategies for its corporate 

and council housing built assets (which together represent 95% of its 

emissions, excluding procurement), and transitioning 15% of its fleets to electric 

vehicles.  

 

4. To maintain this carbon reduction towards 2030, the council will accelerate its 

programme of retrofitting corporate buildings. Retrofit delivery plans for council 

housing and corporate properties are in development for completion by the end 

of 2022. Four initial pipeline projects plus the flagship retrofit of the civic 

campus are underway in corporate properties, and five hybrid heat pump 

systems are due to be installed in council housing blocks by late 2022. 

Significant obstacles are being managed, including costs, eligibility for external 

funding, competing operational requirements for buildings and fleet, and 

capacity of the market to deliver projects.  

 

5. Borough-wide emissions reduced by 38% between 2010 and 2019 (the most 

recent data available). The carbon footprint from electricity use has decreased 

significantly over recent years due to the decarbonisation of the national grid, 

and increased efficiency of electricals.  

 

6. Emissions reduction from gas boilers has been slower to date, with limited 

government support for private sector housing decarbonisation during the past 

decade. The pace of installation of insulation and heat pumps in the private 

sector will need to accelerate significantly, with substantial investment needed 

from central government, homeowners and landlords. The council is delivering 

initiatives to support this transition including subsidised retrofit plans for private 

homes, and grant schemes for energy efficiency measures. 

 

7. Emissions from road transport remained at the same level in the decade to 

2019. A net zero road network requires a 27% reduction in motor vehicle use, 

as well as a transition to electric vehicles. Since 2019 the council has rolled out 

further cycling infrastructure, an extensive vehicle charging network, and a 

Clean Air Neighbourhood, with further schemes to enable sustainable travel in 

development.  

 

Page 6



8. The council has made good progress on most of its strategy workstreams. As 

well as carbon reduction mentioned above, action to nurture the borough’s 

biodiversity is underway, including improvements to habitat in parks such as 

tiny forests, and the borough-wide No Mow May initiative.  

 

9. Actions across the workstreams are at early stages, with plans in place to build 

these towards full roll-out over the decade.  

 

10. As well as carbon reduction mentioned above, action to nurture the borough’s 

biodiversity is underway, including improvements to habitat in parks such as 

tiny forests, and the borough-wide ‘No Mow May’ initiative. 

 

LIST OF APPENDICES 

 

Appendix 1 - H&F 2030: Climate and Ecology Strategy; Progress and 2022-23 

Priorities 

 

 

 

Page 7



P
age 8



P
age 9



P
age 10



P
age 11



P
age 12



P
age 13



P
age 14



P
age 15



P
age 16



P
age 17



P
age 18



P
age 19



P
age 20



P
age 21



P
age 22



P
age 23



Three enablers for the 
Climate and Ecology Strategy

1. Engagement, education and influence

2. Finance and decision-making

3. Green economy

P
age 24



1.

P
age 25



P
age 26



2.

P
age 27



P
age 28



3.

P
age 29



P
age 30



Priorities for 2022-23 

Initial top priorities in actioning this administration’s 

ambitious net-zero carbon plan:

1. Council housing retrofit plan

2. Corporate buildings retrofit

3. Support private homes retrofit

4. Energy masterplan

5. Clean Air Neighbourhoods
6. Ecology and adaptation

P
age 31



Council housing 
retrofit plan

Current 
status

• Pilot schemes including Energiesprong
and 5 hybrid heat pumps.

• Funding won for retrofit - further 
applications to be made.

In 
progress

• Retrofit assessments now undertaken 
for all capital programme projects.

• Retrofit plan in development to model 
cost, schedule, and policy approaches 
to retrofitting the entire housing stock.

Ambition • Detailed modelling of each property
• Proposed measures and costs
• Strategy for resident involvement, 

financing, planning requirements etc.

P
age 32



Corporate buildings 
retrofit

Current 
status

• Civic campus ground source heat pump
• 4 air source heat pump (ASHP) 

schemes underway

In 
progress

Retrofit Accelerator for Workplaces (RAW) 
– 39 properties being surveyed to apply 
for Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme 
(PSDS) funding.

Ambition • A plan to decarbonise core properties, 
covering 1,920 tons CO2e p/a – 57% 
of our ‘scope 1 + 2’ footprint

• A pipeline of shovel-ready projects for 
external funding

P
age 33



Support private homes
retrofit

Current 
status

• Developing guidance to retrofit homes
• Free pre-planning application advice
• Free comprehensive retrofit plans

In 
progress

• Funding retrofit for low income 
households with Green Homes Grant

• Offering support with Solar Together 
• Engaging people on the benefits of 

retrofitting their homes

Ambition • Creating a retrofit market within the 
region to support skills and jobs

• Scaling up retrofits across the borough
• Supporting the transition to clean 

energy and heat networks

P
age 34



Energy masterplan

Current 
status

Civic campus GSHP in process to provide 
district heating to the site.

In 
progress

Joint funding won to develop an energy 
masterplan, with work underway since 
early 2022.

Ambition • Identify the strategic opportunities for 
district heating in the borough

• Provide a pipeline of major energy 
projects for funding bids

• Inform the Local Plan and area 
masterplans for future development.

P
age 35



Current 
status

South Fulham scheme, East of 
Wandsworth Bridge Road, implemented.

In 
progress

Scoping future neighbourhoods for Clean 
Air Neighbourhood roll-out.

Ambition • Coproduce a rollout of neighbourhood 
schemes with residents

• Substantial improvement in air quality, 
including around schools

• Reducing road transport emissions by 
managing out-of-borough through-
traffic.

Clean Air Neighbourhoods

P
age 36



Ecology and adaptation

Current 
status

Ecology and adaptation strategies and 
actions plans developed for the council 
and other stakeholders to consider.

In 
progress

Ecology and adaptation action plans being 
implemented across the borough.

Ambition Support residents and businesses to take 
action on ecological issues and more focus 
on adapting to higher temperatures and 
the impacts on public health, homes, 
buildings and infrastructure.

P
age 37


	Agenda
	3 Committee Terms of Reference (To Note)
	4 H&F 2030: Climate and Ecology Strategy and 2022-23 Priorities
	Appendix 1 - Climate Strategy, Progress and Priorities - Sept 2022


